
October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 
 

 
STUDY SESSION 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: October 6, 2011 

 Time: 6:00 pm 

 Posted: 9/29/11  
 

1. CALL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER – Mayor 
a. Wastewater Treatment Plant Update on Change Orders number 

nine, ten, eleven, and twelve. 
2. ADJOURN STUDY SESSION 

 
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: October 6, 2011 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted:9 /29/11  
 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL – Deputy City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:   

a. Deputy City Clerk gives Oaths of Office 
i. Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 

b. United Way Proclamation  
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 
 

approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  Page  5 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable .......................................................................  Page 6 
b. Approval of previous minutes:  

i. September 1, 2011................................................................................  Page 19 
ii. September 7, 2011  ...............................................................................  Page 22 

9. CALL ITEMS 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum  
11. BUSINESS 

a. Update on Acquisition and Conveyance (Possible Action) of Navy 
Housing .............................................................................................................  Page 24 

b. Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Ferndale and Eel 
River Disposal Inc. ..............................................................................................   Page 26 

c. Resolution 2011-39 for 14th Progress Pay Request for Management and 

Construction Related Costs for the Wastewater Treatment Plant ................... Page 31 
d. Approve Waste Water Change Orders 9, 10, 11 and 12 ....................................  Page 35 
e. Letter of Commitment as participating jurisdiction in Humboldt County 

Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Planning ...............................................  Page 36 
12. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................  Page 39 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ...........................................  Page 64 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review .......................................................................................  Page 75  
ii. Planning Commission ............................................................................  Page 79 

iii. Sign Committee .....................................................................................  Page 81 
c. Council Reports and Comments ........................................................................  Page 82 

14. ADJOURN ........................................................................................................................  Page 82 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

THURSDAY, November 3, 2011 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 
 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
Deputy City Clerk gives Oaths of Office 

                                                                                 Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 
 

                                                

                                           United Way Proclamation 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 
 
 

                                      City of Ferndale     INCORPORATED 1893 
                                                 POB 1095; Ferndale CA 95536 

 
 

 

 

 

A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
UNITED WAY MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, the 2011-2012 United Way Campaign officially opened on September 17, 2011  with 
its 18th Annual Day of Caring to raise funds to help the Humboldt and Del Norte communities 
with daily needs and the increasing needs of a changing economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of United Way is to mobilize the caring power of the community to 
change lives, thereby improving the overall quality of life in the communities we serve. The 
United Way Campaign works to advance the common good by focusing on the critical building 
blocks that we all need for a good life; and 
 
WHEREAS, United Way works on improving people’s access to critical health services and 
preventive health care education, and works with partners to target childhood obesity through 
physical activity; and 
 
WHEREAS, United Way helps children and youth achieve their potential through education, 
providing in-school tutoring through Schools of Hope, and also partners with The Decade of 
Difference – 2020 Initiative to get children ready for success in college, work and life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the United Way through their Humboldt Community Switchboard helps families 
become more financially stable and independent, partnering with the County, non-profit 
organizations and businesses in supporting basic needs while increasing financial understanding 
and accessing to important services through information and referral. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it proclaimed by the City Council of the City of Ferndale that the month 
of October 2011 is United Way Month in Humboldt County. The Council calls upon all citizens to 
Give, Advocate and Volunteer to promote LIVING UNITED, thereby improving the lives of our 
families, friends and neighbors.   
 

Dated:  October 6, 2011 

 

 

       

  

 Mayor, City of Ferndale 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 
 

Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 
 

      

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 
 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for the September 1, 2011 Meeting 7:00 p.m 

 
Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Stuart Titus, Ken Mierzwa, John Maxwell and Niels Lorenzen as well as City Manager Jay 
Parrish,  City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Engineer Praj White, Project Manager Kent Hanford, 
Consultant Elizabeth Conner and Police Chief Bret Smith. Those present pledged allegiance to the flag.  
 
Ceremonial:  the City Clerk gave Oaths of Office to Lee Haldorson, Level 1 Reserve Police Officer and 
Faraz Soltani, Seasonal Police Officer. The City Clerk read the 2011 North Coast Stand Down 
Proclamation. Mayor Farley presented it to the board representative, who gave a short speech. 
Under Public Comment, Chrys Hamper commented that the American Flags in Ferndale should be 
replaced with new ones. 
 
Consent Calendar: Councilman Titus asked that item 8bii be pulled. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Approve 
the consent calendar which includes acceptance of accounts payable and the July 27, 2011 minutes. All 
in favor.  
 
Call Items: Item 8bii, Councilman Titus explained that under the item of Wind Turbines, where it reads 
“This project violates the core values in this community,” he explained that he was not against the 
project, but that according to the very preliminary plans dealing with the notion that homes could be 
removed or residential areas moved, that would be against the core values of the community. He 
understands that transportation is part of the project proposal. He would like the minutes to reflect 
that: “Although I understand that transportation is part of the proposed project, the idea of removing 
homes or businesses would violate the core values in this community. This project violates the core 
values in this community.” MOTION: (Titus/Farley) Approve the minutes from the August 4, 2011 
meeting, as amended. All in favor. 
 
Presentation: Representing ShellWind were Kevin Simmon, Tom Lee, Craig Sheffler, Pana Ratuna and 
Cate Powers. Mr. Ratuna gave a slide presentation and answered questions. ShellWind has developed 
eight wind farms in the U.S. and three in Europe. ShellWind has been in this area since 2004. They are 
now working on environmental studies with Fish & Game, Fish & Wildlife, Humboldt County, Coastal 
Commission, CPUC, Federal Aviation, NOAA. There will be public comment period towards the end of 
next year, with possible construction in 2014. Transmission lines will go to the Rio Dell substation; there 
will be network upgrades. The transportation studies identified five routes; however, ShellWind will not 
consider cutting down our Christmas Tree, taking houses or historic structures, or using Monument 
Road. There will be job creation; 8-12 during operations, 100-125 indirect jobs. There will be economic 
benefits, infrastructure upgrades and social investments. The lines from Rio Dell to Eureka will be 
upgraded. Citizen and council comments included: have they contacted Pacific Lumber Company to use 
their summer bridge and skid roads? If the decision of the community is that we don’t want this, what 
will happen? How about air lifting parts and equipment? Won’t trucking parts and equipment through 
Ferndale affect personal property? Houses already shake with the traffic that is on Main Street now. This 
is the Victorian Village; what is going to happen to our property values? Could ShellWind give an 
example of a project that was let go because of community comment? Do any of the representatives 
from ShellWind present at the meeting have windmills near where they live? Ferndale would not be 
reaping any benefits from the project. At what point does it become a done deal? Loleta will have a 
clear view of the turbines. What about red lights? Where will the aggregate come from, as there would 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 
 
be 50 cubic yards per turbine? Some of the routes show going up the Wildcat. Who will have to make 
modifications to the road? The Wildcat provides springs for water to the City of Ferndale. How about 
airlifting the blades and tower sections? How are the citizens of Ferndale involved as stakeholders? Do 
the citizens of Ferndale wanted heavy trucks going through Ferndale? Fernbridge is 100 years old with 
only two narrow lanes. How will we get in and out of town? Is there a Phase II and Phase III?  
The County is the lead agency on the EIR, which they have been working on since 2010. The EIR is on 
hold, waiting for information from ShellWind. When the EIR is complete, the county will gather 
comments and the County Planning Commission will decide on a conditional use permit. The City of 
Ferndale doesn’t have direct veto power over the County Planning Commission. The City can appeal the 
County Planning Commission’s decision to the Board of Supervisors. Comments included: Why would 
ShellWind continue to spend money when we don’t want the project? If the Ferndale City Council 
doesn’t give encroachment permits through the city, will that stop the project? The lights on the towers 
will ruin our night sky. Can you put it to a vote? Can ShellWind access Bear River without going through 
Ferndale? What transmission lines will be upgraded? Have you looked at our climate? From November 
through May there are slides on Blue Slide – it is dangerous. Can you get barge access from the sea? The 
visual impact from Fernbridge may have a deleterious effect on tourism, which is very important here. 
Loleta will be able to see the lights and it would be noisy. Can we have more information from 
ShellWind? Going through Ferndale is not the best route. The old-time families logged the hills and 
money was invested in the community. Is there a habitat conservation Plan? Councilmen Mierzwa and 
Maxwell have concerns on tourism, infrastructure, and habitat conservation. Councilman Lorenzen 
reported that at one time there were 43 loads of timber a day going through Ferndale. Councilman Titus 
remarked that we were much better informed after ShellWind’s visit.  
 
Navy Housing Acquisition: City Manager Jay Parrish thanked Mike Thompson Liz Murgia, John Driscoll, 
the Ad Hoc Committee (Maryann Bansen, Dick Hooley, Mike Moreland) and all others involved in the 
Navy Housing Acquisition. Elizabeth Conner reported that we now have documents for which we have 
been waiting. The Navy’s Environmental report shows that although there is some minor lead based 
paint and non-friable asbestos containing material, there are no environmental conditions that would 
prevent conveyance to the City of Ferndale. The City or the future owner will have to remediate. The 
Preliminary Title Report through Humboldt Land Title shows no debts, liens, unpaid taxes, and no issues 
of concern. There are two easements: sewer and PG&E. There is a lease hold on the title, and we are 
working with the Navy to have it removed. The lease which runs from 1959-2014 is with a company that 
is now out of business. The Quit Claim Deed shows a deposit in escrow. There are no guarantees: 
Ferndale will accept the property as is. The dwelling units shall be used for the purpose of low- and 
moderate-income in perpetuity. The Planning Commission has determined that the acquisition is 
consistent with the General Plan. Questions and comments from the audience included: The lead paint 
issue should be resolved before the units are rented out. There are EPA laws that contractors have to 
follow if the complex is public housing. (Conner remarked that the property will belong to a private 
individual or a private non-profit.) In reply to someone who wanted to know more about the lease, 
Conner said the lease had to do with when the complex was used by the Navy as a housing facility for 
workers at Centerville Beach. Karen Ringel of the Navy says the company was never in the picture and 
may have lost their right. It is very low risk. What would it cost to buy out the lease? Theoretically 
someone could come forward and say “we have a right to lease this property.” This is known as a “cloud 
on the property”, and its effect on the Council is microscopic. Will any of the properties be for sale? A 
citizen remarked that she strongly urged the city to accept the complex for families, seniors and others 
who need housing. MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Approve Resolution 2011-36 Accepting real property 
interests from the United States of America in the Real Property identified by Assessor Parcel numbers 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 
 
030-101-007-000 and 030-141-009-000 (Naval Facility Centerville Quarters), and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents. Four Ayes, one Nay from Niels Lorenzen. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Project Manager Kent Hanford brought the council up to date on the 
progress at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. MOTION: (Maxwell/Mierzwa) Approve Resolution 2011-37 
for 13th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction Related Costs for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. All in favor. 
 
Street Improvement Priority List: City Manager Jay Parrish reported that he will continue to update the 
list. Granite Construction went through town and prioritized repair on streets. He has coordinated the 
list with all departments, and included Del Oro Water Company. 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:02pm. The next regular meeting will be on October 6, 2011. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
            City Council Minutes for the September 7, 2011 Special Meeting 7:00 p.m.  Page 1 

 
 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Special Meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. Present were Councilmen Titus, 
Maxwell, Mierzwa and Lorenzen as well as City Manager Jay Parrish, Finance Manager Deb Austrus and 
Consultant Elizabeth Conner. 

The City Manager gave an update on the 52-unit Navy Housing and Elizabeth Conner talked about the 
due diligence performed by the city. 

Don Hindley of the Bertha Russ Lytel Foundation and the L.D. O’Rourke Foundation gave a presentation 
on the plans for the Navy Housing. Both Foundations have cash available to make improvements and 
change the look of the houses in that area. They also have plans of putting in new sidewalks and a 
recreation room. They have no plans of selling any of the properties. 

Larry Parker gave a presentation on the plans he and his investors have on the Navy Housing which 
include having low to moderate housing available to buyers and renters. Purchasing the properties from 
the City will create revenue that could not go into the General Fund but could go into affordable 
housing.  

Several citizens spoke in favor of the Lytel Foundation and the O’Rourke Foundation. 

Resolution 2011-38 Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate Exclusively with Lytel Foundation and its 
subsidiary the O’Rourke Foundation interested in Owning and Managing the Ferndale Housing Complex: 
MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Approve Resolution 2011-38 Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate 
Exclusively with Lytel Foundation and its subsidiary the O’Rourke Foundation interested in Owning and 
Managing the Ferndale Housing Complex. Four ayes with one abstain from Lorenzen. 

No Closed Session. 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 pm.  

The next regular council meeting will be October 6, 2011. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

Deb Austrus 

Finance Manager 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 
 

Section 9 

 
CALL ITEMS 

 
These are items pulled from the consent agenda  

for discussion and a separate motion. 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 
 

         
Section 11 

BUSINESS 

 
Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Update on Acquisition and Conveyance (possible action) of 
Navy Housing  

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve MOU and conveyance of the Navy Housing to the O’Rourke Foundation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
On the acquisition of the property from the Navy: 
 
Both the City and Navy completed and signed all necessary documents and deposited them into 
escrow. Staff was successful in working with the Navy and the escrow company to get the old 
lease removed from the title. The documents have been recorded and as of October 1, 2011, 
the City is the owner of the former Navy housing complex.  
 
On the conveyance to an entity who will own and manage the property as affordable housing 
for seniors and families: 
 
At the last meeting, your Council authorized the City Manager to exclusively negotiate with the 
Lytel/O’Rourke Foundation. Since that time, we prepared a draft agreement for review by 
Lytel/O’Rourke staff and Board of Directors. We have had several “negotiating” meetings with 
their staff. We are pleased to report that the negotiations are going well and we expect to have 
a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to bring before your Council this meeting. If 
approved, it will go to the Lytel/O’Rourke Board. 
 
To finish the proposed agreement, we need to complete a thorough review of physical and 
legal issues so that the City can concentrate on topics that need to be included. Because this 
was a military development many of the normal development procedures did not take place. 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 
 

The City does not possess plans, easements, or right of ways for infrastructure in this 
development. Part of the City’s due diligence is to inventory these needs and ensure they are 
adequately addressed. 
 
Once the parties have reached agreement on the MOU, the following steps will complete 
conveyance to Lytel/O’Rourke Foundation:  
 

1. Final MOU approved by resolution of both parties and signed;  
2. Parties agree to open escrow and open; 
3. Escrow officers send instructions to both parties for review; 
4. Special Counsel reviews escrow instructions and other docs with City Manager; 
5. Receive from Lytel/O’Rourke: Board of Directors resolution designating an authorized signer; 

Board of Directors resolution accepting real property; evidence certifying their 501(c) (3) status; 
signed and notarized copies of escrow instructions, deed, accounting statement and MOU. 

6. Staff review docs from Lytel and prepares staff report and resolution to convey for City Council; 
7. Resolution to convey property to Lytel/O’Rourke approved by City Council; 
8. City Council Resolution is signed and notarized and deposited in Escrow; and 
9. Escrow is closed and the property conveys to Lytel O’Rourke. 

 
Lastly, whether or not the conveyance is completed by then, we are planning a ceremony to 
receive the property from the Navy on Saturday, October 22, 2011 from 2:30 to 3:15pm. The 
date has been set so that Congressman Mike Thompson could attend. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Unknown at this time.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Ferndale and Eel 
River Disposal Inc. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Memorandum of the Understanding between the City of Ferndale and Eel River 
Disposal Company, Inc to establish the city’s Green Waste curbside collection program and 
approve Resolution 2011-40. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A number of months ago the council approved the City Manager negotiating with Eel River 
Disposal regarding the Green Waste Program. The city has kept a list of people in the 
community who wish to have this service and we have reached the required numbers to initiate 
this program. What is in front of you tonight is an MOU that initiates a pilot program of green 
waste pick up for a year. After that time Eel River Disposal and the city can evaluate whether 
the program should continue or not, as well as possible rate structure adjustments.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF FERNDALE AND EEL RIVER DISPOSAL 

COMPANY, INC. TO ESTABLISH THE CITY’S GREEN 

WASTE CURBSIDE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into as of November 1, 2011 between Eel River Disposal 

Company, Inc. (“ERD”) and the City of Ferndale (“City”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of solid waste 

and the exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the “Franchise 

Agreement”) and 

B. WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to include yard trimmings 

(“Green Waste”) and 

C. WHEREAS, ERD and the City are interested in (1) gauging and generating interest in, (2) 

understanding the extent of the expected costs and (3) judging the value of the particular 

approaches of collecting Green Waste, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERD agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to create 

a trial program for the collection of Green Waste within the City: 

1.  From as soon after such date as the City executes this Agreement that ERD can proceed 

to October 31, 2012, there will be a program for the collection and reuse of Green 

Waste. 

2. The program will involve the use of supplied specially designated sixty eight gallon 

Green Waste toters which will be picked up every other week during the Program.  ERD 

will establish rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and the 

non-contamination of material.  The Green Waste will be transported to Scotia where it 

will be used to generate electricity or to the City of Fortuna’s corporation yard.  If this 

use of the material becomes unavailable or not fully available, the Program shall be 

suspended until ERD and the City can agree on a new delivery point and any other 

needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

3. The participants in the Program must specially sign up for the participation in the 

Program.  Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service during the Program.  

The cost of the service will be added to the participant’s current garbage or recycling 

service bill and is available to private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

4. The City, with the advice and review of ERD will provide Program publicity in a similar 

manner as the Single Stream Recycling Collection Program under the Franchise 

Agreement and ERD will also provide Green Waste publicity to its current customers 

along with its billing for service. 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 
 

5. Three months before the one-year anniversary of the Program, the City and ERD will 

meet to discuss the level of customer interest, what opportunities exist to enhance 

customer interest, what the per customer cost to provide this service was, the future 

prospects for Green Waste disposal and the level of contaminated materials in the 

Green Waste stream, all in connection with mutually drafting an appropriate Franchise 

Agreement amendment and serving an appropriate rate for Green Waste collection as 

part of the Franchise Agreement.  The Franchise Agreement amendment shall include a 

vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the location or cost of disposal should 

change. 

6. If the Program is not sufficiently used to reasonably sustain operations, ERD and the City 

may agree to terminate the Program early upon giving subscribers thirty days’ notice. 

 

 

City of Ferndale, a Municipal Corporation 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Mayor Jeff Farley, City of Ferndale 

 

 

Eel River Disposal Company, Inc. 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

President Harry A. Hardin, Eel River Disposal Co. 

 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-40 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF FERNDALE AND EEL RIVER DISPOSAL 

COMPANY, INC. TO ESTABLISH THE CITY’S GREEN 

WASTE CURBSIDE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into as of November 1, 2011 between Eel River Disposal 

Company, Inc. (“ERD”) and the City of Ferndale (“City”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

D. WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of solid waste 
and the exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the “Franchise 
Agreement”) and 

E. WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to include yard trimmings 
(“Green Waste”) and 

F. WHEREAS, ERD and the City are interested in (1) gauging and generating interest in, (2) 
understanding the extent of the expected costs and (3) judging the value of the particular 
approaches of collecting Green Waste, and 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERD agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to create 

a trial program for the collection of Green Waste within the City: 

7.  From as soon after such date as the City executes this Agreement that ERD can proceed 
to October 31, 2012, there will be a program for the collection and reuse of Green 
Waste. 

8. The program will involve the use of supplied specially designated sixty eight gallon 
Green Waste toters which will be picked up every other week during the Program.  ERD 
will establish rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and the 
non-contamination of material.  The Green Waste will be transported to Scotia where it 
will be used to generate electricity or to the City of Fortuna’s corporation yard.  If this 
use of the material becomes unavailable or not fully available, the Program shall be 
suspended until ERD and the City can agree on a new delivery point and any other 
needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

9. The participants in the Program must specially sign up for the participation in the 
Program.  Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service during the Program.  
The cost of the service will be added to the participant’s current garbage or recycling 
service bill and is available to private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

10. The City, with the advice and review of ERD will provide Program publicity in a similar 
manner as the Single Stream Recycling Collection Program under the Franchise 
Agreement and ERD will also provide Green Waste publicity to its current customers 
along with its billing for service. 

11. Three months before the one-year anniversary of the Program, the City and ERD will 
meet to discuss the level of customer interest, what opportunities exist to enhance 
customer interest, what the per customer cost to provide this service was, the future 
prospects for Green Waste disposal and the level of contaminated materials in the 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 
 

Green Waste stream, all in connection with mutually drafting an appropriate Franchise 
Agreement amendment and serving an appropriate rate for Green Waste collection as 
part of the Franchise Agreement.  The Franchise Agreement amendment shall include a 
vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the location or cost of disposal should 
change. 

12. If the Program is not sufficiently used to reasonably sustain operations, ERD and the City 
may agree to terminate the Program early upon giving subscribers thirty days’ notice. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 6st day of October, 2011 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Debbie Austrus, Deputy City Clerk 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11c 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-39 for 14th Progress Pay Request for 
Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion x Information 

Action Required: x No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-39 14th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Work on our WWTP began on August 2, 2010 and this is the 14th draw down from the USDA 
loan. The costs associated with this draw down include costs from Wahlund Construction for 
$569,933.82. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$569,933.82 from the USDA loan account 
 

 

   

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 
 
 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 
 

 
 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-39 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE  

APPROVES THE FOURTEENTH PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST TO WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, MANHARD 

CONSULTING FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Wahlund Construction began Work on our Wastewater Treatment Plant on August 2, 2010; 

and  

WHEREAS, Manhard Consulting is supplying Construction Administration for this project; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale will be processing partial pay requests on a monthly basis, as well as 

periodic individual bills; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has received the fourteenth partial payment request of $569,933.82 for 

Wahlund. This all falls within the parameters of our WWTP budget. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale hereby approves 

payment of the Fourteenth partial payment request in the amount of $569,933.82 for Wahlund. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 6st  day of October, 2011 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Debbie Austrus, Deputy City Clerk 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 
 

Meeting Date: May 5, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11d 

Agenda Item Title: Approve Wastewater Treatment Plant Change Orders 9, 10, 11 and 
12. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Wastewater Treatment Plant Change Orders 9, 10, 11 and 12. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City Council will have a study session prior to this meeting, and will now vote on the change 

order as presented during the study session. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
To be presented at the meeting. 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11e 

Agenda Item Title: Letter of Commitment as participating jurisdiction in Humboldt 
County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Planning 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize City Manager to send letter and to commit time to qualify for matching funds. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The state requires cities and community service districts as well counties to have an up to date 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. The city in conjunction with other entities in Humboldt County put 
together a qualified plan almost five years ago. Each entity is required to have a valid Hazard 
Mitigation Plan in order to qualify for FEMA funding in the event of a natural disaster. The City 
Manger acted as the city’s agent on the steering committee that developed the city and the 
counties plan. Because the plan needs to be updated every five years the county is coordinating 
the effort to once again initiate the process of updating, the City Manager’s time on the 
steering committee again will qualify as the necessary matching funds.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

None 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 
 
 

 

 

September 26, 2011 

Cybelle Immitt 
Natural Resources Planning Division 
Community Development Services  
County of Humboldt   
3015 H Street 
Eureka, CA 95501 
 

Re:  Letter of Commitment as participating jurisdiction in Humboldt County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard 

Mitigation Planning  

 

Dear Ms. Immitt, 

 

As the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Local Mitigation Plan requirements 

under 44 CFR §201.6 specifically identify criteria that allow for multi-jurisdictional mitigation plans and 

that many issues are better resolved by evaluating hazards more comprehensively by coordinating at 

the county, regional, or watershed level, the City of Ferndale  is submitting this letter of commitment to 

confirm the City of Ferndale has agreed to participate in the Humboldt County Multi-jurisdictional 

Hazard Mitigation Planning.  

 

Further, as a condition to participating in the mitigation planning; The City of Ferndale agrees to 

meet the requirements for mitigation plans identified in 44 CFR §201.6 and to provide such cooperation 

as is necessary and in a timely manner to Humboldt County to complete the plan in conformance with 

FEMA requirements. 

 

The City of Ferndale understands that it must engage in the following planning process, as more 

fully described in FEMA’s Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Planning Guidance dated July 1, 2008, including, 

but not limited to: 

 

 Identification of hazards unique to the jurisdiction and not addressed in the master 
planning document; 

 The completion of a vulnerability analysis and an identification of risks, where they 
differ from the general planning area; 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 
 

 The formulation of mitigation goals responsive to public input and development of 
mitigation actions complementary to those goals. A range of actions must be identified 
specific for each jurisdiction. ; 

 Demonstration that there has been proactively offered an opportunity for participation 
in the planning process by all community stakeholders (examples of participation 
include relevant involvement in any planning process, attending meetings, contributing 
research, data, or other information, commenting on drafts of the plan, etc.); and 

 Documentation of an effective process to maintain and implement the plan; and, 
 Formal adoption of the Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan by the jurisdiction’s 

governing body (each jurisdiction must officially adopt the plan). 
 

In order to meet the obligations above, The City of Ferndale commits to an in-kind grant 

match contribution of $2,500.00 in the form of staff time. Therefore, with a full understanding 

of the obligations incurred by participating in the FEMA hazard mitigation planning process as a 

participant in a multi-jurisdictional plan; I Jay Parrish commit The City of Ferndale  to the 

Humboldt County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Planning effort.  

 

Executed this 6th day of  October 

 

 

 

 
        ___________________________ 

Jay Parrish, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 
 

 

 

Section 12 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 
 
  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 
 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 
 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 
 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 
 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 
 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 

CITY MANAGER: 

Meetings:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 City Council- Sept 5:30-9:00 pm 

 City Manager meeting- Sept 15-  3:00-5:00 pm 

 RCEA  Sept - 3:00- 5:00 pm 

 Conversations with ERD numerous meetings and discussions regarding universal pickup and 
green waste. Should have amendment to franchise agreement on agenda that will allow us to 
have pilot program for the green waste. 

 Weekly meeting on WWTF progress with Manhard project manager. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding daily workload. We continue to look at organizational 
changes to adjust for City Clerk absences dues to health issues of her and her husband. She will 
be off on family leave for possibly six weeks. I am asking Council to appoint Brianna Deputy Clerk 
so that we can better cover the need to respond to customer needs on a weekly basis. 

 Met with construction manager, Wahlund construction representative and USDA 
representative, to go over monthly pay request. Also went over construction progress, and 
change orders. We continue to look for ways to reduce costs and save time. They have made 
good progress in the last several months and have made up much of the time lost during the 
dewatering process in December and January. Still anticipate being on time and under budget. 
We have spent the last six months or so looking at the possibility of not removing the sludge 
from the pond. The pond will be used as in the past and will supply a holding area during the 
rainy season for excess flow over facility capacity. Savings related to this change order will 
approximately equal the dewatering change order and put us at about half our contingency. We 
are winding down this project and not expecting to go over budget and we already are reporting 
better than required quality on our effluent. Reports from all agencies are positive. 

 Continuing discussions with Fresnel lens committee members to go over a project to move 
Lens from fair to museum. On August 15th we sent a proposal to the Coast Guard and are 
waiting to hear back from them. We are waiting for estimation from DCI. We have not heard 
from Attorney General regarding our proposal. 

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, 
NRC representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property 
owners in effort to get support for project. Hope to have work start late this fall or early 
next spring. The project remains very important to the City because of the location next to 
our wastewater facility and the health of Francis Creek and our whole drainage system. We 
are on the Coastal Commission agenda and hope to be successful. 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 

 
 

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues.  
 The EECBG grant is moving forward. Remember this is a grant that the City gave to the 

schools to do energy upgrades. Both the grammar school and high school will are receiving 
new lighting systems that will save them a pretty substantial amount every year. The City 
will be required to supply the financing and then be reimbursed for those costs within 45 
days. 

 Daily meetings with Public Works in morning to go over daily activities. We are waiting for 
an agreement with the Silva as to our access to Russ Park off Eugene Street. Francis Creek 
Farms has started building the cyclone fence the length of Firemen’s Park. The cement work 
and galvanized posts should be done in a few weeks. The previous fence was in  We are 
doing some grading work at the Bluff Street Russ Park parking lot as well as some cement 
pads for a bicycle rack and garbage and recycling bin. Completing creek walks but has some 
issues to go over with Scott Bauer regarding the High School property. Drainage ditches 
around town have been cleaned in anticipation of wetter weather. 

 Numerous discussions with Joe Koches to discuss a major piece of art from a world famous 
sculpture that might be available to the city if we wanted to put it in the city green. As of the 
25th Joe was still working on this. 

 Daily discussions and updates on City Council agenda items and city issues with Treasurer. 
Considerable time in developing procedures and documentation relating to building and 
planning issues, and design review situations and interaction with PC and DR committee. 
Remember that the council has put a hold on enforcement issues relating to compliance 
until the committee has addressed changes to the sign ordinance. Karen Pingitore has put 
her name in as a potential member of the sign ordinance committee. PC will vote next 
month on her appointment. 

 Discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues. Most of time 
spent on Housing Element, Historical and Cultural Element, the General Plan update and 
city budget. Asked them about signage ordinance for possible input. Planwest is taking a 
larger role in our permitting process overseeing to ensure that our new process is followed. 

 Navy Housing: Conversations with Karen Ringel of the Navy regarding their progress in 
completing the escrow and quit claim documentation. Working mainly with John Baker 
from the Navy on this part and he believes that he will have the necessary documentation 
by our meeting date. Elizabeth and Nancy have been very helpful making sure we do our 
due diligence. We have completed all of the requirements and as of Sept 30th we will be the 
new owners of the complex. Friday the property management company will turn over the 
keys to the City. I have been in regular communication with our attorney and consultant 
pertaining to the development of the MOU that will accompany the deed as they relate to 
conveyance to the O’Rourke Foundation. Although we are giving this full attention, it may 
take a month or so to complete the transaction. We are also preparing for a ceremony that 
will acknowledge the efforts of those involved in the acquisition process. We are trying to 
accommodate government officials as well as navy personnel that played a prominent role. 
We will inform the community and council as the details are worked out. 

 Number of meetings with members of the SRWC regarding the operation and maintenance 
of the Salt River watershed after the project’s completion. This will be the area we focus on 
in the next few months. We are working with the Coastal Commission on public access 
issues surrounding the lower reaches of the project areas and developing more interaction 
with other areas of the watershed and considering enlarging the board for this purpose. 

 RCEA has obtained funding to complete greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions inventories for the 
municipal operations of Rio Dell, Ferndale, Fortuna, Arcata, Blue Lake, and Trinidad (RCEA 
has already completed inventories for the County and the City of Eureka).  This effort is part 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 
 

of the Green Communities Program administered by Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
(PG&E), funded by rate payers under the auspices of the California Public Utilities 
Commission.  In 2006, the Legislature passed and Governor Schwarzenegger signed AB 32, 
the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, which set the 2020 greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction goal into law.  It directed the California Air Resources Board to begin developing 
actions to reduce greenhouse gases, and the AB 32 Scoping Plan encourages local 
governments to adopt a GHG emissions reduction goal consistent with the State’s overall 
goal of reducing State-wide emissions.  To address this and other legislative mandates and 
air quality regulations that have created a need for climate action planning, the Green 
Communities Program is designed to provide support to local governments and 
communities to achieve GHG-reduction goals related to energy usage.  A baseline GHG 
emissions inventory is an important first step in this process, and RCEA has agreed to assist 
with this work as a service to its member-entities at no cost to the cities.  

 Numerous conversations with DF&G (Scott Bauer) going over creek maintenance and in 
particular the creek in front of High School. He agreed to have me go over with the High 
School the elements required to comply with DF&G’s requirements. I have discussed this 
with all the parties and believe that we will comply in future.  

 

 

 

FINANCIAL MANAGER/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 
 

 

Meetings  
 

 Meeting with City Manager on Office Issues 

 Meeting with Public Work & Admin Asst. on Community Center 

 Special City Council Meeting 

 Meet with Public Work about tractor 
 

Projects 
 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File June Financial Reports 

 Train Admin Asst. on Accounts Receivable 

 Research EQ funds 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 

 
 

 Research PG&E bills for WWTF 

 Ethics Training 

CITY PLANNER: 

Meetings & Planning   

 Coordinated with City Manager about increased staffing and permit processing.  

 Responded to housing information request from a realtor including: vacant land percentage, 
owner and rental occupied housing, single and multi-family units and commercial and 
residential zoned land percentages.  

 Responded to request about adopted General Plan Elements.    

 Responded to realtor request about the subdivision potential of property located on 5th street 
and what initial subdivision costs would be.  

 Responded to request about City’s demolition review procedures.   

 Researched gutter replacement information and potential acceptable materials.     

 Reviewed and commented on Navy Housing Deed Restrictions.  

 Coordinated mapping updates for City’s website.  

 Attended 8/24 Planning Commission meeting. 

 Participated in 8/25 Design Review Committee meeting by phone.  
 

Projects 

 132 Ocean Ave. - Conducted 8/24 public hearing on behalf of City Engineer. Prepared and sent 
PC action letter to applicant.  

 General Plan Update - Participated in 8/23 consultation with Bear River Band of Rohnerville 
Rancheria Tribal Historic Preservation Officer and City Manager. 

 General Plan Update - Historical & Cultural Resources Element - Public review and hearing of 
Draft Element scheduled for 8/24 PC meeting. Received and incorporated DRC comments into 
draft Element.  

 General Plan Update - Housing Element Update - Reviewed Housing Element requirement and 
additional analysis required.  

 

CITY ENGINEER: 

Sewer Projects:  – 
o New Sewer Manholes Located in Main Street with Cleanouts at various locations  

 Project has been awarded to DCI Builders. 
 DCI working with Caltrans to obtain Encroachment Permit for work on State Route 

(Main Street) 
Pedestrian Improvement Project –  

o Prepare Construction Documentation for bid 
o Project is advertised for Bids (Bid opening will be Oct. 18, 2011) 
o Work will proceed through the winter season 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 
 

o Working on Bid Addendum to detail work on Herbert Street and clarify wet weather 
construction schedule 

Applications –  

o Correct Keyes LLA, revisions to Notice of LLA per Assessor’s Office 
o Approved Improvement Plan and Revised Drainage Report for Matt Pidgeon 
o LLA1120 Christainsen - Conducted engineering review of LLA, site visit, correspondence with 

City and Utility company staff, analysis of project, prepared conditions of approval and staff 
report. 

 

NAVY Housing – 

o Working with the City Manager and Ms. Elizabeth Conner to identify utility and access 
easements that may need to be address in the MOU with the Lytel Foundation.  We are 
looking to identify the existing inventory, determine who is responsible for maintaining 
infrastructure, and establish that the owning utility or agency is satisfied with the access 
rights for maintenance. 

 Including but not limited to: 

 Access 

 PG&E 

 City Sewer 

 Frontier Communications 

 Suddenlink 

 Del Oro Water Company 

 Storm Drain System 
 

o Working with the City Manager and Ms. Elizabeth Conner to identify the process for building 
permits and renovations as required for Certificate of Occupancy on each individual 
structure.  We will establish a process and determine responsibilities in the MOU 

 

o Working with the City Manager and Ms. Elizabeth Conner to identify actions of future 
property owners that will trigger infrastructure improvement requirements.  An example 
would be:  If future owner proposes phased subdivisions or proposes additional residential 
structures what improvements if any would be required by the City.  

 

 

 

General Engineering –  

o WWTF Construction Permit Compliance - Correspondence with City staff and RWQCB 
regarding expiration date of compliance with State General Permit for Construction, discuss 
details of updating Storm water Pollution and Prevention Plan to maintain compliance with 
the State's permit.  

o ARRA reporting for Pedestrian Improvement Project 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 
 

o Review opportunities for new transportation projects funded by State or Federal sources 
o General support for cemetery boundary line correction 
o Approved Final improvement plan and drainage report for Matt Pidgeon Subdivision 
o Attend HCOAG TAC Meeting 
o Working on a capital improvement priority list  
o Research and correspondence with City and County staff regarding Francis Creek sediment 

deposition and dredging. 
 

Meetings and Committees –  
o None 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff 

 

 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 New Plant Startup and Training: 
o Most of the facility components are on-line and functioning. The belt press will be started up when 

the plant has accumulated enough solids to waste from the plant.  
o Operator Coppini and Chief Plant Operator Culbert traveled to Manhattan, Kansas September 12-15 

for process and lab training for the Aeromod system as part of Aeromod’s startup contract. The 
operators toured one of the local Aeromod plants as well as the factory where our facility and belt 
press were constructed and assembled. The operators spent 10 hours in the classroom studying 
process control and learning how to best operate our facility in general. Operators from Florida, 
Oklahoma, Iowa and Kansas also attended the class.  

o Demolition of the chlorine contact chamber occurred during the month. The tank was drained and all 
the baffles were removed. What remains is an open basin that will now be used to briefly store the 
finished effluent. 

o The influent bypass station taken off line during the month. 
o The sludge cake effluent pipe was installed. 
o Started new effluent and irrigation pumps as well as put the hydro tank online. There are still a few 

bugs to work out but they are minimal. 
o Most of the lab equipment has been delivered and stocked. While our lab will not be certified to 

perform regulatory testing it will still be valuable in performing process testing that will help the 
operators in the operation of the system. 

o Both operators have moved into the new offices and are working full time at the facility site. Daily 
monitoring and periodic testing is performed. Maintenance schedules have been compiled and staff 
has already begun performing some of that maintenance that is required shortly after startup. 

 Sewer lateral inspections at 1012 Main St and the 100 block of Berding. 

 Sewer trouble call on Washington St. Staff cleared line with City owned sewer snake. 

 The Main Street and Harrison manhole job, awarded to DCI Construction, is still in the permitting stage waiting 
for Cal Trans. Anticipate completing that job by mid-November or sooner. 

 CPO trained office staff with downloading video files from August meetings.  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 
 
 CPO reviewed and signed daily operation sheets for WWTF  

 CPO performed the daily operation of WWTP during operator Coppini’s scheduled day off. 

 The state has gone to a mandatory online Electronic Self Monitoring Report(eSMR) system. All reporting is 
now done online. Staff will continue to send a copy to the Regional Board via email in the original format. 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab work to be 
done. 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS: 

Again: 

Walked Frances Creek looking for obstructions. 

Ongoing – Follow up on creek and speaking with property owners. 

Talk with the remaining residents that have not cleaned out their portion of the creek. 

 

 

CITY PROPERTY 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Mowed the Bocce area and BB Field. 
o Patched playground rubberized surface. 
o Regraded chips under the swing set. 
o Removed down tree at park from Frances Creek.  Cut up and hauled away. 
o Re-striping the parking lot at the community center. 
o Prepped infield for upcoming Bocce Tournament and watering the greens by the courts. 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins daily. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 

August 2011 Flows Total Average Minimum Maximum 

Influent MGD 4.350 .146 .121 .175 

Effluent MGD 3.204 .103 .019 .185 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 
 

o Pull out trash daily 
o Cleaned out redwood gutters. These gutters are in very poor condition and need replacing. 
o Checked into water filtration for City Hall water. Not cost effective. Need to rehook into city 

water 3 to 4 months out of the year. 
o Getting estimates for the roof for City Hall. 

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Re-striping the parking lot 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Put in new combo dead bolt at the kitchen. 
o CHILDRENS CENTER 
o Repaired broken play equipment 
o Adjusted the lock at the CommCenter. 
 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Wet Well –  

 . 

  

 Public Works –  

 Had keys made for Coast Guard Housing. 
 

      Children’s Center –  

Ordered a new door for the Children’s Center. The front door they have now is rotting. 

Cut back the hedge 

Repaired trikes 

 

Storm Drains 

Removed debris from all the drains around town. – 

Sewers 
 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 

 
 

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Prepared for fair. Cleaned Van Ness all the way up and down. 

 Painted red curbs all over for the fair. 

 Cleaning up after the fair. 

 Worked on down stop sign at McKinley and Dewey St. 

 Painting cross bars at Shaw and 5th four way stop. Getting ready for school to start. 

 Put in new stop signs at McKinley and Dewey. Pole and sign. 

 Put in new stop signs at Dewey and Jackson.  Pole and sign. 

 Picking up garbage all over Van Ness and surrounding streets every day (a lot) due to fair. 

 Re-hung old DEAD END sign at Dewey and McKinley 

 Cleaned out ditch at Nichol’s Way. 

 Cleaned out culvert on Washington 

 Replace DEAD END sign at the end of McKinley 

 Roadside mowing of Bluff and Lower Bluff St. 

 Painted STOP bar at Shaw at 5th St. 

 Painted crosswalks at 5th and Ocean 

 Mowed the alley behind the Library 

 Mowed the foot of the Wildcat and hauled off garbage. 

 Sprayed throughout town within city limits as needed 

 Painted STOP bars at: Eugene at Berding, Berding at Shaw, Berding at Washington, Berding and 
Harrison, Berding at Lewis, Berding at Fern, Berding at Rose, Rose at McKinley, Rose at Schley, 
Washington at Schley, Grant at McKinely, Rose at McKinley & Rose at Herbert 

 
VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 

  

 MISCELLANEOUS 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 
 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 

 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT: 
 
 
Faraz Soltani was sworn in as a Seasonal Police Officer.   
 
Lee Haldorson was sworn in as a Level I Reserve Officer. 
 
The California Law Enforcement Association of Records Supervisors (CLEARS) and the Ferndale Police 
Department hosted training at Town Hall on September 23.  There were 30 attendees. 
 
Officer Diaz participated with the Fire Department in planning a joint prevention day at the Ferndale 
Elementary School. 
 
Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee. 

Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 

Police Statistics – August 2011 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 1   

Assault 2   

Burglary 1   

Vehicle Theft 0  

  

TOTAL 4 

SECONDARY CRIMES 12 

Calls for Service 65 

Reports Written 22 

  

  

Traffic Citations 12 

Other Citations 6 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 

 
 
Parking Citations 0 

Warnings 45 

ARRESTS 10 

AGENCY ASSISTS 15 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 

 
 

 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Others 

 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Design Review Minutes for the 8/25/11 8:30am meeting 

 

Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:32am. Committee Members Dane Cowan, Michael Bailey, Lino 

Mogni and Michael Sweeney along with staff Administrative Assistant Brianna Smith and City Planner 

Vanessa Blodgett by phone. Members of the public Joey Jachowski, and Niels Holgersen were present.   

 

Michael Sweeney remarked that he had not received the August 18 packet through email, and had not 

known of the meeting. 

 

MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). Approve minutes from August 4, 2011. All in favor. 

MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). Approve minutes from August 11, 2011. All in favor. 

MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). Approve minutes from August 18, 2011. Four ayes with Michael Sweeney 

abstaining. 

 

1226 Main Street: Applicant to submit a revised sketch. MOTION:(Cowan/Bailey). Eliminate gable roof 

portion of project. Approve re roofing of main house and addition of shed roof. All in favor. 

 

Public Education:  Received a new map. Discussion involved if handbook should be 11x17 vs 8 ½ x 11. 

The map is much more readable in 11x17 also the text taken out to make information fit in 8 ½ x 11 can 

be  added back. Michael Sweeney will have a print out of the handbook in 11x17 at next regular meeting 

for committee members to look at. Also discussed was the September 1st deadline of the Draft Historical 

and Cultural Resources Element. Committee member Bailey brought up that there were some errors in 

the background of Ferndale. There was brief mention of the Danish and that the Portuguese were left 

out entirely. He believes this would be a mistake and that it could upset some of the Portuguese families 

in Ferndale. He would like to see more information about the Portuguese and Danish influence in the 

Draft Historical and Cultural Resources Element. Vanessa will look into.  

 

Sign Committee update, possible interview of volunteers from the business community:  Dan Brown 

gave an update. Sign Committee will report directly to the Planning Commission. It was voted at the 

Planning Commission meeting that Phillip Ostler would be approved to serve on the Sign Committee 

Dan explained that the Sign Committee could start meeting with four members.  

 

Sign Brochure:  Tabled until next regular meeting  

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 

 
 
Distribution of Historic District Handbook: Tabled until next regular meeting. 

 

Committee Member Comments: Discussion involved the confusion of who puts together the agenda for 

the Design Review and the question of who to present an item to for the agenda.  Michael Sweeney had 

a question regarding the handbook and if it needed to be approved by the Planning Commission? 

Chairman Brown directed staff to put Chairman and Vice Chairman, meeting time and how to put an 

agenda together on agenda for next regular meeting.  

 

The next regular meeting will be September 22, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 9:24. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Brianna Smith 

Administrative Assistant  

 
City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Special Design Review Minutes for the 9/1/11 8:30am meeting 

 

Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:30. Committee members Dane Cowan, Lino Mogni, 

Michael Sweeney and Michael Bailey were present along with staff Administrative Assistant Brianna 

Smith and member of the public Matt Beck. 

 

No public comment. 

 

719 Main Street: MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). Approve roofing application to install composition shingles. 

 

Committee Comments: It was thought that the Historic District Handbook was supposed to be on 

agenda for this special meeting. Dan Brown suggested that committee members be clearer to as 

whether they want an item on the agenda for special meeting or a regular agenda. 11x17 handbook was 

passed around. Does it need to go to PC? Historic District Handbook will be on next special meeting 

agenda. Discussion also included the Historical and Cultural Resources Element comments; it was also 

thought that this was going to be on agenda. It was explained by staff that the comments were not 

received in time to be put on agenda for this special meeting. Staff was directed to put the Historical and 

Cultural Resources Element on the next special agenda.  

 

The next special meeting will be September 8, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 9:03 am.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

Brianna Smith 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 

 
 
Administrative Assistant 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Design Review Minutes for the 9/22/11 8:30am meeting 

 

Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:31am. Committee members Michael Bailey, Dane 

Cowan, Lino Mogni, and Michael Sweeney were present, along with City staff Administrative Assistant 

Brianna Smith and City Planner Vanessa Blodgett by phone. Members of the public Andrei Hedstrom and 

Neils Holgersen were present as well. 

 

No public comment. 

 

MOTION: Approve  minutes from August 25, 2011. (Cowan/Bailey). All in favor 

MOTION: Approve minutes from September 1, 2011. (Sweeney/Cowan). All in favor 

 

831 Main Street:   MOTION: Approve applicant to build fence as presented. (Cowan/Bailey). 

 

1226 Main Street:   MOTION: Approve application with the condition that a similar skirting be added to 

the bottom of the porch to match the existing skirting on the house. (Bailey/Cowan). All in favor. 

 

Chair & Vice Chair:    MOTION: Approve existing Chair and Vice Chair. (Sweeney/Bailey). All in favor. 

 

Meeting time:   MOTION: Approve existing meeting time. (Sweeney/Cowan). All in favor. 

 

Agenda Assembly:  It was explained that Administrative Assistant Brianna Smith is the one who puts 

together the agenda and packet for the Design Review and that all agenda items should be sent to her, 

as well as to Chairman Brown with a CC to the City Manager and City Clerk. Also Chairman Brown asked 

that staff send agenda items to Vice Chair Dane Cowan as well. 

 

Public Education:  No new business. 

 

Distribution of the Historic Handbook:  It was decided that the Historic Handbook needs to go to the 

Planning Commission. MOTION: Approve the handbook being distributed via direct mailing to residences 

in the Design Review Zone, business owners , property owner, also it will be distributed with new 

business licenses, at City Hall, Chamber of Commerce, Ferndale Museum, Committees and boards, and is 

to be posted on the City’s website once it has been approved by the Planning Commission. 

(Bailey/Sweeney). All in favor. 

 

Sign Committee Update: Michael Bailey gave an update on the Sign Committees first meeting. 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 

 
 
Sign Brochure Draft: Remove from agenda. Will bring back if necessary. 

 

Draft Historical and Cultural Resource Element comments: City Planner Vanessa Blodgett explained that 

she incorporated the corrections and comments that the DR had into the Draft Historical and Cultural 

Resource Element and that it will be in the Planning Commission packet for the 9/28/2011 meeting for 

the PC to approve. 

 

No Committee comments. 

 

The next regular meeting will be on October 27, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 9:30. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Brianna Smith 

Administrative Assistant 

 

 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 79 

 
 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of August 24, 2011 

 

Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 

7:10p.m.  Commissioners Trevor Harper and Dan Brown as well as staff City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

and Planner Vanessa Blodgett were present. Lino Mogni was absent. Those in attendance pledged 

allegiance to the flag.  MOTION: (Harper/Brown): The June 15, 2011 minutes were unanimously 

approved. Proposed change: move item 5.2 before item 5.1. 

 

The Chair opened the Public Hearing for the Christiansen Lot Line Adjustment, 132 Ocean Avenue: City 

Planner Vanessa Blodgett, as a representative of the City Engineer, gave an overview of the Lot Line 

Adjustment. The City Engineer intends to approve the lot line adjustment as proposed, subject to the 

conditions of approval included in the staff report dated 8/24/11. Commissioner Trevor Harper asked if 

under Findings of Fact, the third bullet under Item 4 should be changed since it does not seem 

applicable to this Agriculture-Exclusive project. It now reads “Is compatible with the maintenance of a 

healthful residential living environment and the predominantly residential character of the area.” The 

Planner agreed to adjust that item on future findings. Comments from the public: Nancy Trujillo, 277 

Ocean Ave, inquired if the land is being made available for purchase by ShellWind or the City in order to 

widen the Wildcat Road. Mr. Uffe Christiansen said that he had no intention to sell it to ShellWind; that 

he hasn’t been contacted by nor has he contacted ShellWind. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 

The Chair opened the Public Hearing for the Historical and Cultural Resources Element. City Planner 

Vanessa Blodgett commented that the DRAFT Element is on the city’s website and has been linked to 

other local websites. The City Manager and City Planner met with the Bear River Rancheria group 

regarding the Element; there were no formal comments. The Planner said that there would be some 

comments from the Design Review Committee. There were no comments from the public. 

 

Navy Housing Acquisition – General Plan Consistency Determination The City Planner summarized the 

project and explained that the Planning Commission would need to determine that the acquisition is 

consistent with the General Plan. The Planner had determined that there are no restrictions in the 

General Plan. Members from the public to speak included Dick Hooley who was concerned with the 

property’s non-compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. Planner Blodgett explained that what is before 

the Planning Commission is whether the acquisition is compliant with the General Plan, and it is. Nancy 

Trujillo also spoke regarding who is responsible for lot splits and sewer hookups as well as loan value to 

ratio. Commissioner Trevor Harper relayed that if there are entities interested in the property, why 

haven’t they been named? The Planner explained that that issue would be brought before the city 

council. MOTION: (Brown/Harper) Approve Resolution Number PC 2011-34, Navy Housing Acquisition 

General Plan Consistency Determination. All in favor. 

 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 80 

 
 
Navy Housing Disposition – General Plan Consistency Determination: The City Planner summarized the 

Resolution. Nancy Trujillo wondered if the property were to be managed by a third party, not necessarily 

transferred to a third party. Dick Hooley said that in order for the city to accept the property or transfer the 

property, the Planning Commission has to determine that it is consistent with the General Plan. The 

following changes were suggested by the Planning Commission on Resolution Number PC 2011-35: Second” 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale expects to obtain title to the Property on or before September 30, 2011 and 

thereafter possibly transfer it to another entity for affordable housing opportunities consistent with the 

federal appropriation condition …”. On the fourth WHEREAS “the City’s possible disposition of the Property 

…” MOTION: (Von Frausing-Borch/Brown) Approve Resolution Number PC 2011-35 Disposition of Housing 

Property Acquired from US Navy Genereal Plan Consistency Determination as amended. All in favor. 

 

Planning Commission Applicants: MOTION (Von Frausing-Borch/Harper) Wait 90 days per City Ordiance and 

re-advertise for the Planning Commission Vacancy. All in favor. 

 

Approval of Sign Ordinance Committee Members: Nancy Trujillo pointed out that with the makeup of the 

committee if the committee reports to the Design Review Committee, who then reports to the Planning 

Commission, two members of the Planning Commission would have already determined their vote on the 

sign ordinance before it comes to the Planning Commission. Staff was asked to place on the next agenda: 

Have the Sign Committee report directly to the Planning Commission. The commission then discussed 

appointing Diane and Phillip Ostler to the committee. Although our city attorney advised there was nothing 

legally wrong with a husband and wife on the same committee, the Planning Commission disagreed. 

MOTION: (Von Frausing-Borch/Brown) Approve the appointment of Phillip Ostler to the Sign Committee. 

All in favor. 

 

Beginning Sign Ordinance Committee meetings without a full complement of business owner members. 

MOTION: (Harper/Brown) Approve beginning sign ordinance committee meetings with the current 

membership. On a future agenda, discuss changing the makeup of the committee to include members of 

the public. 

 

Correspondence: Commissioner Harper wanted the City Council to go to the government agency for 

which HCD works and get an elected official to get on board regarding the regional housing needs to 

include the Navy Housing. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. The next regular meeting will be September 21, 2011 

 

Respectfully submitted:  

 

 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

  



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 81 

 
 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 9/15/11 3:30pm meeting 

 

Michael Bailey  opened the meeting at 3:48pm. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, Phillip Ostler, 

and Trevor Harper were present along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and Administrative Assistant 

Brianna Smith.  

 

No public comment. 

 

Chair and Vice Chair: MOTION: (Sweeney/Harper). Accept Michael Bailey for Chair. All in favor. MOTION: 

(Sweeney/Harper). Accept Phillip Ostler for Vice-Chair. All in favor. 

 

Meeting time and day: MOTION: (Harper/Ostler). Accept meeting time and day for the 2nd Thursday of 

the month at 3:30pm.  

 

Committee Protocol & Ethics: Staff handed out reference handbooks for committee members to go 

over. City Manager Jay Parrish gave a brief overview of the protocol and ethics as well as the conflict of 

interest. Committee member Ostler will need to get with staff to fill out the 700 form and take online 

course. 

 

Historical Materials: What is the purpose of the Sign Committee was discussed. It was explained that the 

existing Sign Ordinance is vague and that there is a lot of wordage not in the ordinance and that the 

committee was need to help establish a new structure and make it easier for the community to 

understand. Committee also discussed the handout that Committee member Michael Bailey put 

together.  

 

Conflict of Interest:  Phil to get with staff to fill out some paper work. 

 

Committee Comments:  Committee member Bailey has some correspondence to introduce at next 

regular meeting. Committee member Sweeney had a question as to what the goal from now to the next 

meeting would be. It was agreed that generating a general plan would be the goal to focus on. It was 

decided that each member would come up with steps to wind up with an ordinance and at the next 

meeting the committee will review the inputs. 

 

The next regular meeting will be October 13, 2011 at 3:30pm. The meeting was adjourned at 4:40. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Brianna Smith 

Administrative Assistant 



October 6, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 82 

 
 

 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments 

 

 
 

Section 14 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


